


HOW DO I “VERIFY BEFORE I BUY” AN INVESTMENT?  
Before giving them your money, always investigate investment advisers 
(sometimes called investment or financial planners), securities salespeople  
(sometimes called brokers, stockbrokers, or agents), the firms for which 
they work (dealer or brokerage firms), and the investment (securities 
offering) they want you to buy.  

 
GET IT IN WRITING!  
Whatever an adviser or a securities salesperson tells you about himself or 
herself, about the investment he or she is offering to you, or about the 
company or people in which you would be investing, get what you are told 
in writing. Anyone offering an investment opportunity to you should 
provide an offering memorandum—a complete description of the 
investment and the people and risks involved with the investment. READ 
THE OFFERING MEMORANDUM! If you do not understand it, get help 
from an accountant, lawyer, or another independent third party who does 
understand how to read an offering memorandum.  

 
ASK QUESTIONS ABOUT YOUR ADVISER OR SALESPERSON.  
 
Talk to your adviser or salesperson and insist that he or she answers your 
questions to your satisfaction. Write down the answers you are given, the 
name of who gives you the answers, and the date. Ask:  

• What commission or fee will you earn if I buy the investment?  
• Who or what entity will be paying you?   
• Will you be receiving any benefit other than your commission 

of fee if I buy the investment?  
• Are you related to or involved with the investment in any way 

other than recommending that I buy it?   
• Are you registered or licensed and, if so, with whom? If you are 

not registered or licensed with a regulatory agency, why not? 



• Have you ever you ever been sued, disciplined, or had any 
complaints filed relating to your work as a salesman or adviser?  

 
INDEPENDENTLY RESEARCH THE BACKGROUND OF YOUR 
ADVISER OR SALESPERSON.  
If you are dealing with an investment adviser, check the IAPD (Investment 
Adviser Public Disclosure web site: www.adviserinfo.sec.gov) to see if the 
investment adviser is licensed in Arizona, how long the adviser has been 
licensed, and whether or not the adviser has any disciplinary history. If you 
do not have access to the IAPD, contact the Securities Division at 602-
542-4242 or toll free at 1-866-VERIFY-9 (within Arizona).  

Also, check out the investment adviser representative (the individual 
dealing with you, who works for the investment adviser) by contacting the 
Securities Division.  

If you are dealing with a salesperson, check out the individual and the 
dealer for which the salesperson works on the Web CRD (Central 
Registration Depository) to see if the salesperson and dealer are registered 
in Arizona, for how long, and whether they have any disciplinary history 
(www.finra.org).  If you do not have Internet access, contact the Securities 
Division at 602-542-4242 or toll-free (within Arizona) at 1-866-VERIFY-
9.  

 
ASK QUESTIONS ABOUT THE INVESTMENT.  
Ask your salesman, your adviser, and the officers or directors of the 
company in which you may make an investment all of the questions you 
have about the investment until you understand it and are comfortable. 
Write down the answers you are given, the name of the person who gives 
you the answers, and the date.  

Ask: Is the investment registered with the U.S. Securities and Exchange 
Commission or the Arizona Securities Division?  If not, why not?  If the 
investment is exempt from registration, what is the nature of the 



exemption? Is a notice regarding this exempt offering on file with the 
SEC or the Securities Division?  If not, why not?  

NOTE: The fact that a particular investment is registered, or exempt 
from registration, is not a guarantee as to how that investment will 
perform, or that it is an appropriate investment for you. If you need 
assistance understanding an investment and when it is suitable to 
invest in that type of investment, seek assistance from an accountant, 
attorney, or independent adviser.  

Understand the fundamental nature of the investment. Understand the tax 
implications of the nature of the investment. Understand your rights as a 
creditor or an owner if the entity in which you are investing goes bankrupt.  

Is it a debt offering? If you invest in a debt offering (notes, bonds, 
debentures), you will become a creditor.  If the offered security is a debt 
obligation, who will repay your investment to you?  Will you get interest; 
how much?  Is your investment, the debt obligation, secured or 
guaranteed?  If so, by what or whom?  

Is it an equity (stock) offering?  If you obtain an equity interest in an 
entity, you become an owner. Will you own shares of stock in a 
corporation?  Will you own a partnership interest or a limited liability 
company membership interest?  Will you have any control over how the 
entity is run?  Will you receive dividends?  

Is the investment “liquid”? Can you sell the investment if and when you 
want to? Is there a market—are other buyers interested in the investment? 
Will you be able to get your entire investment back?  Do you have to hold 
the investment for a specific period of time? Will you have to pay 
penalties if you sell the investment earlier?  

 



NOTE: Most securities offerings do not contain a “buy-back” feature 
and if you need to get your money back, you will likely have to attempt 
to sell the investment on the “secondary market” if one exists. If you 
have to sell your investment in a secondary market, you may have to 
sell for a substantial discount from the original amount of your 
investment.  

What type of business are you investing in?  Is it an established business 
with an operating history?  If so, what is that history?  If not, does the 
proposed business make sense?  Is it likely to be successful?  

Who is responsible for operating the business in which you are investing? 
Do those persons have the necessary skill, experience, and training to 
operate the business?  

What risks are you taking by making the investment? What factors may 
jeopardize the success of the business undertaking?  

What factors may jeopardize your ability to recover your investment and 
make a return on that investment?  

NOTE: Once you thoroughly understand the types of business risks and 
market risks involved with the investment, you need to assess your 
financial position and risk tolerance. Can you afford or are you willing 
to take those risks?  

 
INDEPENDENTLY RESEARCH THE INVESTMENT.  
Check the public records of the superior court to see if any of the people  
or entities involved have been or are involved in a lawsuit. 

www.superiorcourt.maricopa.gov   TEL:  602-506-3360  

Check the public records of the bankruptcy court to see if any of the  
people or entities involved have filed bankruptcy:  



602-640-5800 (Phoenix)  
928-783-2288 (Yuma) 
520-620-7500 (Tucson)  

Call the Better Business Bureau to see if the entities 
involved are members and if any complaints have been 
filed: www.phoenix.bbb.org 

 
 602-264-1721 or toll-free, 1-877-291-6222  
 

Check Corporation Starpas or contact the Corporations Division of the 
Arizona Corporation Commission to see if the corporations involved have 
filed annual reports, which list financial, officer, and director information. 
Arizona corporations are required by statute to file annual reports with the 
Arizona Corporation Commission.  Check www.azcc.gov or call: 

 602-542-3026 (Phoenix)  
 800-345-5819 (outside Metro Phoenix)  
 520-628-6560 (Tucson)  

Call the Office of the Arizona Attorney General to see if they have any 
information about the people or entities involved:  

602-542-5763  

Contact relevant departments to see if people are appropriately licensed  
and if they have disciplinary histories.  

Real Estate Department – 602-468-1414 (x100)  
Department of Insurance – 602-364-3100  
Securities Division – 602-542-4242 or toll-free, 1-866-VERIFY-9  

Obtain from the Securities Division a brochure entitled, “What Every 
Investor Should Know” by calling 602-542-0428 or online from 
Investor Info Center at www.azinvestor.gov.  

Review materials that discuss that type of investment.  Review each 
organization’s web site for links to additional resources:  



Additional Resources 

 

Securities Division  
Arizona Corporation Commission (ACC) 
602-542-4242 or toll-free within Arizona 
1-866-VERIFY-9 (837-4399)  
www.azinvestor.gov  

U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) 
202-272-2800  
www.sec.gov  

Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA) 
202-728-8000 or toll free, 1-800-289-9999  
www.finra.org  

North American Association of Securities Administrators 
(NASAA) 
202-737-0900  
www.nasaa.org  

Alliance for Investor Education 
www.investoreducation.org  
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